UNITED STATESENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY
BEFORE THE ENVIRONMENTAL APPEALSBOARD
WASHINGTON, D.C.

In the M atter of:

Apartment Investment and
M anagement Company,

Docket No. TSCA HQ-2002-0003

Respondent.

S N N N N N N N

CONSENT AGREEMENT

The United States Environmenta Protection Agency (“EPA”), and the Department of Housing
and Urban Development (“HUD”), as Complainant, and Apartment Investment and Management
Company and its Affiliatesidentified in Appendix 1 of this Consent Agreement (collectively
“AIMCQ"), as Respondent, (al of the foregoing entities hereafter collectively referred to asthe
“Parties’), enter into this Consent Agreement to settle all matters pertaining to this case. This case was
initiated pursuant to EPA’s Incentives for Self-Policing: Discovery, Disclosure, Correction and
Prevention of Viodlaions, 60 F.R. 66706 (December 22, 1995)(“ Audit Policy) updated by 65 F.R.
19617 (April 11, 2000). Using EPA’s Audit Policy, AIMCO proposed auditing its pre-1978

properties to determine its compliance with the Residential Lead-Based Paint Hazard Reduction Act
of 1992 (“Act"), 42 United States Code (“U.S.C."”) 884851, et. seq. The Parties consent to the entry
of this Consent Agreement and the attached proposed Fina Order prior to the offering of any testimony
or other evidence and without adjudication of any issues of law or fact. The Parties agree to
commence and conclude this proceeding by issuing this Consent Agreement and proposed Find Order
as prescribed by the Consolidated Rules of Practice Governing the Adminigtrative Assessment of Civil
Pendlties, 40 C.F.R. Part 22. More specificdly, in accordance with 40 C.F.R. Section 22.18, the
Parties consent to the entry of this Consent Agreement and the proposed Fina Order and agree to
comply with itsterms. This Consent Agreement provides AIMCO the opportunity to achieve
compliance with Section 1018 and to reduce the risk of childhood lead poisoning.
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I
PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

AIMCO owns and manages multifamily properties throughout the United States.

EPA and HUD dlege that AIMCO violated Section 1018 of the Residential Lead-Based Paint
Hazard Reduction Act, 42 U.S.C. 84852d, and Section 409 of the Toxic Substance Control
Act (“TSCA™), 15 U.S.C. §2689, by failing to comply with the requirements of Title 40 of the
Code of Federa Regulations (“C.F.R.”) Part 745, Subpart F, and 24 C.F.R. Part 35, Subpart
A, as promulgated under the Act.

The Parties agree that settlement of this action without further litigation isin the best interest of
the Parties and in the public interest.

The Parties consent to entry of this Consent Agreement and the proposed Find Order without
ahearing on any issues.

AIMCO dipulatesthat EPA and HUD have jurisdiction over the subject matter of this Consent
Agreement. AIMCO waives any defenses it might have as to jurisdiction.

AIMCO neither admits nor denies the factua alegations or conclusions of law contained in this
Consent Agreement as set forth in Counts 1 - 6 in Section 1V of this Consent Agreemen.
AIMCO hereby waivesitsright to ajudicid or adminigirative hearing on any issue of law or
fact set forth in this Consent Agreement.

AIMCO consents to the assessment of the civil pendty contained herein.

AIMCO waivesits right to apped the proposed Final Order accompanying this Consent
Agreement.

EPA and HUD initiate this proceeding against AIMCO for the assessment of a civil pendty of
one-hundred twenty-nine thousand five-hundred eighty dallars ($129,580) pursuant to Section
16 of TSCA, asamended, 15 U.S.C. 82615, and Section 1018(b)(1), 42 U.S.C.
§4852d(b)(1), through this Consent Agreement.
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I
DEFINITIONS

Unless otherwise expresdy provided herein, terms used in the text of this Consent Agreement
have the same meaning as 42 U.S.C. §84851b, Section 1018, 42 U.S.C. 884852d and the
regulations at 40 C.F.R. Part 745, Subpart F and 24 C.F.R. Part 35, Subpart A. Whenever
the terms listed below are used in this Consent Agreement the following definitions apply:

a “AIMCQO” meansthe Apatment Investment and Management Company and its
afiliates identified on the AIMCO Affiliates List in Appendix 1 of this Consent
Agreement. The AIMCO Affiliates List in Appendix 1 includes Casden Properties,
Inc. (“Casden”), and its subsidiary Nationa Partnership Investments Corporation
(“NAPICO"). Theincluson of dffiliates of Casden and NAPICO, who are owners of
target housing, on the AIMCO Affiliates List in Appendix 1 is conditioned on
AIMCO's acquisition of Casden and NAPICO. See Paragraph 43 for further
information regarding the acquidition of Casden and NAPICO asit rdaesto this
Consent Agreement.

b. “Appendix 1" meansthelist of AIMCO Affiliatestitled “ Appendix 1: AIMCO
Affiliates Lig” attached to this Consent Agreemen.

C. “Appendix 2" meansthe Currently Owned or Managed Property Ligt titled
“Appendix 2: Currently Owned or Managed Property Ligt” attached to this Consent

Agreement.

d. “Appendix 3" meansthe Previoudy Owned or Managed Property Lidt titled
“Appendix 3: Previoudy Owned or Managed Property List” attached to this Consent
Agreement.

e “ Clearance examination” means an activity conducted following lead-based paint

hazard reduction activities pursuant to Chapter 15 of the HUD Guiddines, to determine
that the activities are completed and that no soil-lead hazards or settled dust-lead

hazards exigt in the dwelling unit or worksite. The clearance process includes avisua



assessment and collection and andyss of environmenta samples. The appropriate
clearance standards shall be the more redtrictive of those set by the jurisdiction where
the property islocated or by the EPA TSCA section 403 regulations (L ead:
Identification of Dangerous Levels of Lead, 66 Fed. Reg. 1205-1240 (January 5,
2001)(to be codified at 40 C.F.R. Part 745)).

“Currently Owned or Managed Property List” shdl mean the lig of target housing
propertiesin Appendix 2. The Currently Owned or Managed Property List includes all
target housing properties owned and/or managed by AIMCO on the date AIMCO
ggnsthis Consent Agreement. The target housing properties owned or managed by
Casden and NAPICO are included in the Currently Owned or Managed Property List
conditioned on AIMCO'’ s acquisition of Casden and NAPICO. See Paragraph 43 for
further information regarding the acquisition of Casden and NAPICO asit rdatesto this
Consent Agreement.

“Days” shdl mean cdendar days, including Saturday, Sunday and holidays.

“Group 1" shal mean al Subject Propertiesin the Currently Owned or Managed
Property List (Appendix 2) that do not receive Project-Based HUD-Ass stance or that
receive Project-Based HUD-A ss stance and whose owners have not requested HUD
Assistance with the lead-based paint inspections.

“Group 2" shal mean al Subject Propertiesin the Currently Owned or Managed
Property List (Appendix 2) that receive Project-Based HUD Assstance whose owners
have requested HUD ass stance with the lead-based paint ingpections.

“HUD Guidelines’ shdl mean the edition of the HUD Guiddines for the Evaluation
and Control of Lead-Based Paint Hazards in Housing (HUD-1539-LBP) in effect a
the time the work required in Paragraphs 51 through 75 of this Consent Agreement is
commenced, on a property by property basis. The specific chapters of the HUD
Guiddines referenced in this Consent Agreement are those chaptersin effect on the
date AIMCO ggnsthis Consent Agreement. Should the number of the appropriate



chapter change in future editions of the HUD Guidelines, prior to AIMCO commencing
any work on a property by property basis, then the corresponding chapter to the
chapter ligted in this Consent Agreement should be subgtituted. If arevison of the
HUD Guiddinesresultsin achangein work practices, AIMCO shdl comply with the
revised HUD Guidelines. At any time, AIMCO shdl employ work practicesthat are
more stringent than those contained in the HUD Guiddines if Sate laws gpplicable in
the jurisdiction where the work is being performed dictate so.

“Lead-Based Paint” shal mean paint or other surface coatings that contain lead equa
to or in excess of 1.0 milligrams per square centimeter or 0.5 percent by weight. If
housing subject to this Consent Agreement islocated in ajurisdiction with amore
stringent definition of Lead-Based Paint or safety standard, such as the 0.7 milligrams of
lead per square centimeter standard in Los Angeles County, “Lead-Based Paint,” as
used herein, shal mean paint or other surface coatings that meet the more stringent
standard.

“Lead-Based Paint Free” shdl mean housing that has been found to be free of paint
or other surface coatings that contain lead equd to or in excess of 1.0 milligrams per
sguare centimeter or 0.5 percent by weight. If housing subject to this Consent
Agreement islocated in ajurisdiction with amore stringent definition of Lead-Based
Paint or safety standard, such asthe 0.7 milligrams of lead per square centimeter
gtandard in Los Angeles County, “Lead-Based Paint Free,” as used herein, shall mean
housing that meets the more stringent standard.

“L ead-Based Paint Free Certification” shdl mean a certification provided by the
Lead-Based Paint inspector that states:

Theresultsof this inspection, using theingpection protocol in
Chapter 7 of the HUD Guidelines for the Evaluation and
Control of Lead-Based Paint Hazards in Housing (1997
Revision), indicatethat no leadin amountsgreater than what
is defined as lead-based paint by the more protective
definition of either the jurisdiction where the property is



located or inamountsgreater than or equal to 1.0 mg/cn? or

0.5 percent by weight. Therefore, this dwelling qualifies for

the exemption in 40 CFR part 745 and 24 CFR part 35 for

target housing being leased that is Lead-Based Paint Free.
“Lead-Based Paint Hazards’ shdl be defined by the more stringent definition of
ether the jurisdiction where the property is located or the standards promulgated by
EPA pursuant to Section 403 of TSCA, 15 U.S.C. 8260, et seq, 40 C.F.R. §745.65.
“Lead-Based Paint I nspection Report” shdl mean the report prepared by the
certified ingpector pursuant to Chapter 7 of the HUD Guiddines a the conclusion of the
Lead-Based Paint inspection of a Subject Property.
“Paragraph” shal mean aportion of this Consent Agreement identified by an arabic
numerd.
“Permanent” shal mean an expected design life of at least 20 years.
“Previousy Owned or Managed Property List” shdl mean dl target housing
properties listed in Appendix 3 of this Consent Agreement. The Previoudy Owned or
Managed Property List includes al target housing properties sold by AIMCO during
the period from January 1, 1996 through the date AIMCO sgns this Consent
Agreement and all target housing properties for which AIMCO stopped providing
management services during the period from January 1, 1996 through the date AIMCO
sgnsthis Consent Agreement. By adding atarget housing property to the Previoudy
Owned or Managed Property List, AIMCO declaresthat it does not have any
remaining or current ownership interest in the target housing property.
“Reduction” shdl mean measures designed to reduce or €liminate human exposure to
Lead-Based Paint Hazards through interim controls, pursuant to Chapter 11 of the
HUD Guiddines, or abatement, pursuant to Chapter 12 of the HUD Guiddlines.
“Risk Assessment Report” shal mean the report prepared by the risk assessor
pursuant to Chapter 5 of the HUD Guidelines a the conclusion of the Risk Assessment
of a Subject Property.



“Section 1018" shal mean Section 1018 of the Residentia Lead-Based Paint Hazard
Reduction Act of 1992, 42 U.S.C. §4852d.

“ Subject Property” shdl mean any target housing property listed in Appendix 2 (the
“Currently Owned or Managed Property List”) of this Consent Agreement.

“Submit” shal mean to dispatch viafirgt class United States mail or other delivery
service of demongtrated rdiability and equivalent or better speed.

“ Subparagraph” shal mean aportion of a Paragraph of this Consent Agreement
identified by aletter.

“Synopsis L ead-Based Paint Inspection Report” shdl mean asummary of the
information contained in the lead-based ingpection reports that is prepared by AIMCO.
The Synopsis Lead Based Paint Inspection Reports shdl: (i) include the name of each
Subject Property inspected; (i) include the address of each Subject Property; (iii)
identify whether AIMCO or another entity isthe owner of the Subject Property; (iv)
gate the number of unitsin the Subject Property; (v) identify al areas, including units
and common areas, where Lead-Based Paint was identified.

“Synopsis Risk Assessment Report” shdl mean asummary of the information
contained in the risk assessment reportsthat is prepared by AIMCO. The Synopsis
Risk Assessment Report shdl: (i) include the name of each Subject Property inspected;
(ii) include the address of each Subject Property; (iii) identify whether AIMCO or
another entity isthe owner of the Subject Property; (iv) date the number of unitsin the
Subject Property; (v) identify dl areas, including units and common areas, where Lead-
Based Paint Hazards were identified.

“Target Housing” shdl mean properties built before 1978, except housing for the
elderly or persons with disabilities (unless any child who is less than S (6) years of age
resdes or is expected to reside in such housing for the elderly or persons with
disabilities) or any zero-bedroom dwelling as defined in 40 C.F.R. §745.103 and 24
C.F.R. §35.86.



12.

13.

[l
APPLICABILITY

The provisons of this Consent Agreement, including, but not limited to, paragraph 36, shdl
apply to and be binding upon EPA, HUD and AIMCO, aswell as AIMCO's officers,
employees, agents, successors and assigns, and shall apply to AIMCO' s Subject Properties for
the duration of this Consent Agreement. In the event that AIMCO proposesto sl or transfer
any of the properties subject to this Consent Agreement, it shal give notice in writing to such
proposed purchaser or successor-in-interest of the existence of this Consent Agreement and
provide a copy of this Consent Agreement. AIMCO shdl send a copy of such written
notification by certified mail, return receipt requested, to EPA and HUD before such sale or
trandfer, if possble, but no later than the closing date of sde or transfer. AIMCO shdl remain
responsible for al work required by this Consent Agreement for al propertiesin the Currently
Owned or Managed Property List until such work is complete, even if AIMCO transfersits
ownership interest in a property after the date the AIMCO sgns this Consent Agreement. Any
transfer is to be conditioned upon the transferee agreeing to undertake the obligations required
by this Consent Agreement. This provision does not relieve AIMCO from having to comply
with any applicable federal, Sate or loca regulatory requirement regarding notice and transfer
of properties.
The properties and units covered by this Consent Agreement are limited to:
a the Subject Propertiesin Groups 1 and 2 listed in the Currently Owned or Managed
Property List (Appendix 2); and
b. the Subject Properties listed in the Previoudy Owned or Managed Property List
(Appendix 3), dthough no work is required under this Consent Agreement on those

properties.
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15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

v
FINDINGS OF FACTSAND CONCLUSIONSOF LAW

AIMCO isacorporation formed under the laws of the State of Maryland. AIMCO does
businessin at least forty-seven (47) states and the Didtrict of Columbia.
AIMCO owns and/or manages more than 600 target housing properties with more than
110,000 dwelling units subject to Section 1018.
For sattlement purposes only, it is assumed and the Parties stipulate that AIMCO failed to
comply with six (6) different provisions of Section 1018, and the implementing regulations found
at 40 C.F.R. Part 745 and 25 C.F.R. Part 35, when it leased nineteen (19) units located in one
or more of the Subject Properties it owns or manages.

Count 1
AIMCO, aslessor, failed to provide an EPA-approved lead hazard information pamphlet to
the lessees of nineteen (19) unitsin one or more of the Subject Properties it owned or managed
prior to leasing the units.
Under 40 C.F.R. §745.107(a)(1) and 24 C.F.R. §35.88(8)(1), before alesseeis obligated
under a contract to lease target housing, the lessor must provide the lessee with alead hazard
information pamphlet, created pursuant to Section 406(a) of TSCA, 15 U.S.C. §2686(a).
AIMCO'sfailureto provide lead hazard information pamphlets to the lessees as required by 40
C.F.R. §745.107(a)(1) and 24 C.F.R. 835.88(a)(1) constitutes nineteen (19) violations of
Section 409 of TSCA and Section 1018 of the Act.

Count 2
AIMCQO, as lessor, faled to include a lead warning statement as attachments to or within the
contracts to lease for nineteen (19) unitsin one or more of the Subject Properties it owned or
managed.
Under 40 C.F.R. §745.113(b)(1) and 24 C.F.R. 835.92(b)(1), the lessor must include alead
warning statement as an attachment to or within the contract to lease target housing.
AIMCO sfailure to include lead warning statements as attachments to or within the contracts
to lease as required by to 40 C.F.R. §745.113(b)(1) and 24 C.F.R. 835.92(b)(1) congtitutes

9



23.

24,

25.

26.

27.

28.

nineteen (19) violations of Section 409 of TSCA and Section 1018 of the Act.
Count 3
AIMCO, aslessor, faled to include statements disclosing the presence of Lead-Based Paint
and/or Lead-Based Paint Hazards or indicating no knowledge of the presence of Lead-Based
Paint and/or Lead-Based Paint Hazards as attachments to or within the contracts to lease
nineteen (19) unitsin one or more of the Subject Propertiesit owned or managed.
Under 40 C.F.R. §745.113(b)(2) and 24 C.F.R. 835.92(b)(2), the lessor must include a
statement disclosing the presence of known Lead-Based Paint and/or Lead-Based Paint
Hazards or a statement indicating no knowledge of the presence of Lead-Based Paint and/or
Lead-Based Paint Hazards as an attachment to or within the contract to lease target housing.
AIMCO sfailure to include statements disclosing the presence of known Lead-Based Paint
and/or Lead-Based Paint Hazards or indicating no knowledge of the presence of Lead-Based
Paint and/or Lead-Based Paint Hazards as an attachment to or within the contracts to lease
target housing as required by 40 C.F.R. §745.113(b)(2) and 24 C.F.R. §35.92(b)(2)
congtitutes nineteen (19) violations of Section 409 of TSCA and Section 1018 of the Act.
Count 4
AIMCO, aslessor, failed to include lists of any records or reports available to AIMCO that
pertain to lead hazard information, or statements that such records and reports do not exist, as
attachments to or within the contracts to lease nineteen (19) unitsin one or more of the Subject
Properties AIMCO owned or managed.
Under 40 C.F.R. §745.113(b)(3) and 24 C.F.R. 835.92(b)(3) the lessor must include alist of
any records or reports available to the lessor that pertain to lead hazard information or to
indicate that no such list exigts as an attachment to or within the contract to lease target housing.
AIMCO sfailure to include lists of any records or reports available to AIMCO that pertain to
lead hazard information or to indicate that no such lists exist as attachments to or within the
contracts to lease as required by 40 C.F.R. §745.113(b)(3) and 24 C.F.R. §35.92(b)(3)
congtitutes nineteen (19) violations of Section 409 of TSCA and Section 1018 of the Act.

10



29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

Count 5
AIMCO, aslessor, failed to include statements by the lessees affirming the receipt of a
statement disclosing the presence of Lead-Based Paint and/or Lead-Based Paint Hazards and
alist of any records or reports available to AIMCO pertaining to lead hazard information as
attachments to or within the contracts to lease nineteen (19) unitsin one or more of the Subject
Properties AIMCO owned or managed.
Under 40 C.F.R. §745.113 (b)(4) and 24 C.F.R. 835.92(b)(4), the lessor must include a
gtatement by the lessee affirming receipt of a statement disclosing the presence of Lead-Based
Paint and/or Lead-Based Paint Hazards and alist of any records or reports available to the
lessor pertaining to lead hazard information as an attachment to or within the contract to lease
target housing.
AIMCO'sfailure to include statements by the lessee affirming the receipt of a statement
disclosing the presence of Lead-Based Paint and/or Lead-Based Paint Hazards and a list of
any records or reports available to the lessor pertaining to lead hazard information as
attachments or within the contracts to lease as required by 40 C.F.R. §745.113(b)(4) and 24
C.F.R. §835.92(b)(4) constitutes nineteen (19) violations of Section 409 of TSCA and Section
1018 of the Act.

Count 6
AIMCO, aslessor, faled to include the signatures of AIMCO, as lessor, its agents and the
lessees certifying the accuracy of their statements, as well as the dates, as attachmentsto or
within the contracts to lease nineteen (19) unitsin one or more of the Subject Properties
AIMCO owned or managed.
Under 40 C.F.R. §745.113 (b)(6) and 24 C.F.R. §35.92(b)(6), the Lessor must include the
sgnatures of the lessors, agents and lessees, certifying the accuracy of the statements, to the
best of their knowledge, as an attachment to or within the contract to lease Target Housing.
AIMCQO' s fallure to include the Sgnatures of the lessors, agents and lessees, certifying the
accuracy of the statements, to the best of their knowledge, as attachments to or within the

11



35.

36.

37.

contractsto lease as required by 40 C.F.R. §745.113(b)(6) and 24 C.F.R. 835.92(b)(6)
condtitutes nineteen (19) violations of Section 409 of TSCA and Section 1018 of the Act.

Vv
TERMSOF SETTLEMENT

EPA and HUD conclude that AIMCO' s past actions, as stipulated in the Findings of Facts and
Conclusions of Law in Section IV above, condtitute violations of the rules promulgated under
Section 1018 and TSCA 8409, 15 U.S.C. §2689, for which a penalty may be assessed
pursuant to 42 U.S.C. 84852d (b)(1), 42 U.S.C. 83545, and TSCA Section 16, 15 U.S.C.
§2615.

The payment of the civil pendty and the full performance of the acts required under this
Consent Agreement resolve EPA and HUD’ s civil and adminigrative claims above againgt
AIMCO for violations of Section 1018 of the Residential Lead-Based Paint Hazard Reduction
Act, and the regulations promulgated thereunder, occurring prior to the date AIMCO sgnsthis
Consent Agreement with respect to the Subject Propertiesin Groups 1 and 2 listed on the
Currently Owned or Managed Property List (Appendix 2) and the properties listed on the
Previoudy Owned or Managed Property List (Appendix 3). The foregoing sentence does not
aoply to any amilar violations at a property on the Currently Owned or Managed Property List
or the Previoudy Owned or Managed Property List subject to any federa, state or local
investigation commencing prior to April 7, 2000. EPA and HUD further agree that, with
respect to any Subject Property owned by Casden and NAPICO that is acquired by AIMCO,
and listed on the Currently Owned or Managed Property List (Appendix 2), which hasits
Section 1018 compliance resolved in accordance with this Consent Agreement, AIMCO will
not be subject to any additiond pendty, other than stipulated pendties for failure to comply with
this agreement, for violations occurring prior to the date AIMCO acquires (either as owner or
fee manager) the property.

The AIMCO Affiliates List (Appendix 1), the Currently Owned or Managed Property List
(Appendix 2), and the Previoudy Owned or Managed Property List (Appendix 3) are

12



38.

incorporated by reference into this Consent Agreement. AIMCO shdl have 90 days to modify
the AIMCO Affiliate List (Appendix 1), the Currently Owned or Managed Property List
(Appendix 2), or the Previoudy Owned or Managed Property List (Appendix 3). AIMCO
ghdl notify EPA and HUD in writing of its proposed modifications to any one of the three ligts.
EPA and HUD will make the find determination of whether to modify theligs. All written
requests under this paragraph shal be made pursuant to Paragraph 92 of this Consent
Agreement.

A. Civil Penalty

Section 16 of TSCA, 15 U.S.C. §2615 and Section 1018 of the Act, 42 U.S.C. §4852d
(b)(2), the Civil Monetary Pendty Inflation Rule, 40 C.F.R. Part 19, and 24 C.F.R. §835.45,
authorize the assessment of a civil penaty of up to $11,000 for each violation of Section 1018.
Based on the violations set forth in Section |V above and after congderation of: (i) nature of the
violations, (ii) the circumstances surrounding the violations, (iii) the extent of the vidlations, (iv)
the gravity of the violation, (v) AIMCO'’s &hility to pay, (vi) the effect of the pendty on the
AIMCO’s ahility to continue in business, (vii) AIMCO's history of prior such violations, and
(viii) such other matters as justice may require, pursuant to Section 16 of TSCA and Section
1018 of the Act, EPA and HUD propose to assess a civil pendty in the amount of one-hundred
twenty-nine thousand five-hundred eighty ($129,580) dollars against AIMCO. Thiscivil
pendty is proposed in accordance with EPA’s Lead-Based Paint Disclosure Rule Enforcement
Response Policy dated February 2000 and Guidelines for Assessment of Civil Penalties
Under Section 16 of the Toxic Substances Control Act (AGuiddines), 45 Fed. Reg. 59770
(September 10, 1980). The proposed pendty for each violation is assessed as follows:

Count 1 $11,000

Failure to provide lessee the EPA approved lead hazard information pamphlet pursuant to 40
CFR 8§745.107 (a)(1) and 24 C.F.R. §835.88(3)(1).

Count 2 $8,800

Failure to include as an attachment or within the contract to lease target housing, alead warning

13



statement pursuant to 40 CFR §745.113 (b)(1) and 24 C.F.R. 835.92(b)(1).

Count 3 $6,600

Failure to include as an attachment or within the contract to lease target housing, a satement by
the lessor disclosing the presence of known Lead-Based Paint and/or Lead-Based Paint
Hazards or indicating no knowledge of the presence of Lead-Based Paint and/or Lead-Based
Paint Hazards pursuant to 40 CFR §745.113 (b)(2) and 24 C.F.R. §35.92(b)(2).

Count 4 $2,200

Failure to include as an attachment or within the contract alist of any records or reports
avallable to the lessor that pertain to lead hazard information or the falure to indicate that no
such records or reports exists pursuant to 40 CFR 8745.113 (b)(3) and 24 C.F.R.
835.92(b)(3).

Count 5 $4,400

Fallure to include in the contract for lease a statement by the lessee affirming receipt of the
information required by 40 CFR §745.113 (b)(2) and (3) and 24 C.F.R. §33.92(b)(2) and (3),
and the lead hazard pamphlet required under 40 CFR 8745.107 (a)(1) and 24 C.F.R.
835.88(8)(1), as specified in 40 CFR §745.113(b)(4) and 24 C.F.R. §35.92(b)(4).

Count 6 $1,100

Failure to include in the contract for lease signatures of the lessor, agent and lessee certifying to
the accuracy of their statements, as well as dates, pursuant to 40 CFR §745.113 (b)(6) and 24
C.F.R. 835.92(b)(6).

Total Penalty per Unit: $34,100
Multiplied by 19 Units: x 19
Total Penalty : $647,900

Reduction of 30% for attitude -
Reduction of 50% for voluntary disclosure -

TOTAL CIVIL PENALTY $129,580

14



39.

40.

41.

42.

AIMCO shdl send acashier’s or certified check in the amount of one-hundred twenty-nine
thousand five-hundred eighty ($129,580) no later than thirty (30) calendar days following the
date the Environmental Appedls Board (“EAB”) sgns the Find Order. Payment shdl be made
payable to the order of the " Treasurer of the United States of America” and mailed to:

U.S. Environmenta Protection Agency
Headquarters Hearing Clerk

P.O. Lockbox 360277

Pittsburgh, PA 15251-6277

The check shall bear the case docket number TSCA HQ-2002-0003.

To ensure arecord of compliance with this Consent Agreement, AIMCO shall send a copy of
the check to EPA and HUD to the attention of:

Brian T. Dyer

Toxics and Pegticides Enforcement Divison (2245A)
U.S. Environmentd Protection Agency

1200 Pennsylvania Ave, N.W.

Washington, D.C. 20460-0001

Maithew Ammon

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Devel opment
Office of Hedlthy Homes and Lead Hazard Control
451 7" Street, SW

Room P-3206

Washington, D.C. 20410

B. Report of Lead Poisoned Children and Abatement Orders Received From
L ocal Health Departments
AIMCO shdl search itsfiles pertaining to the Subject Properties in the Currently Owned or
Managed Property List for any order to remediate alead-based paint condition issued by the
local hedlth department or other state or local government unit in response to a confirmed
instance of alead poisoned child.
a Within thirty (30) days of the date AIMCO signs this Consent Agreement, AIMCO
shall provide EPA and HUD alist of the Subject Properties and their addresses, except
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43.

for Subject Properties currently owned by Casden or NAPICO, where AIMCO has
received an order identified in Paragraph 41.

b. Within thirty (30) days of the date AIMCO acquires Casden and NAPICO, AIMCO
shall provide EPA and HUD alist of the Subject Properties currently owned by
Casden and NAPICO, and their addresses where AIMCO has received an order
identified in Paragraph 41.

C. When submitting the lists required in subparagraphs aand b above, AIMCO shall
include awritten certification stating the following:

AIMCO certifies that it searched itsfiles pertaining to the Subject
Propertiesinthe Currently Owned or Managed Property List for any
order to remediate a lead-based paint condition issued by the local
health department or other stateor local gover nment unit inresponse
toaconfirmed instance of a lead poisoned child, and the only Subject
Properties that have received such an order are listed on the
attached list.
d. The written certification required in subparagraph ¢ above shdl be sgned by an officer

of AIMCO. AIMCO shdl submit the list of Subject Properties and the written
certification pursuant to Paragraph 92 of this Consent Agreement.

C. Acquisition of Casden Propertiesand National Partner ship | nvestements
Corporation
During its normal course of business, AIMCO dates that it anticipates acquiring Casden

Properties (“Casden”) and National Partnership Investments Corporation (“NAPICO”) by
February 2002. The target housing properties currently owned by Casden and NAPICO that
are acquired by AIMCO will be subject to the requirements of Paragraphs 46 though 75 of this
Consent Agreement. The listing of Casden and NAPICO on the AIMCO Affiliates List
(Appendix 1), and listing Casden and NAPICO currently owned target housing properties on
the Currently Owned or Managed Property List (Appendix 2) is conditioned on AIMCO's
acquidition of Casden and NAPICO. AIMCO shdl provide EPA and HUD written notice on
the date that the acquisition of Casden and NAPICO becomesfind. That notice shdl be
submitted pursuant to Paragraph 92 of this Consent Agreement. Should AIMCO not acquire
Casden and NAPICO, Casden and NAPICO will not receive relief for violations of Section
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45.

46.
47.

1018 as described in Paragraph 36 of this Consent Agreement, and AIMCO will not be
required to perform the work required in Paragraphs 47 through 71 of this Consent Agreement
on the target housing properties currently owned by Casden and NAPICO listed on the
Currently Owned or Managed Property List (Appendix 2). AIMCO, however, agrees to pay
adtipulated pendty as stated in Paragraph 79 if it does not acquire Casden and NAPICO
within one year of the date AIMCO sgns this Consent Agreement. Findly, should AIMCO's
proposed acquisition of Casden and NAPICO be canceled for any reason, AIMCO shdll
provide EPA and HUD written notice of such cancellation within thirty days of date the
transaction is canceled.
D. Declaration of No Owner ship Interest In Properties on Previoudy Owned or
Managed Property List
AIMCO shdl not have any current or remaining ownership interest in any property listed on the
Previoudy Owned or Managed Property Ligt.
On the date AIMCO signs this Consent Agreement, AIMCO shdl provide EPA and HUD the
following statement signed by an Officer of AIMCO:

“ AIMCO, and its Affiliates, do not have any current or remaining
ownership interest in any property on the Previously Owned or
Managed Property List.”

E. Compliance with Section 1018

AIMCO shdl comply with al provisons of Section 1018 and its implementing regulations.

To the extent not previoudy accomplished, no later than thirty (30) days after the date AIMCO
sgnsthis Consent Agreement, or with respect to Subject Properties currently owned by
Casden and NAPICO no later than thirty (30) days after the date AIMCO acquires Casden
and NAPICO, AIMCO shdl provide to each tenant living in the Subject Propertiesin the
Currently Owned or Managed Property List (Appendix 2), except for any Subject Property in
the Currently Owned or Managed Property List that has been certified as Lead-Based Paint
Free the fallowing information:

a A copy of the Lead Warning Statement;
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49,

50.

b. A copy of EPA’s Lead Hazard Information Pamphlet, entitled Protect Your Family

From Lead in Your Home (EPA #747-K-94-001); and
C. A cover letter that contains the following paragraph:

AIMCO is conducting a review as to the presence of Lead-Based

Paint inits properties. To the extent that any Lead-Based Paint

existsin a particular property, AIMCO will reduce Lead-Based

Paint Hazards as defined by the applicable federal regulations. As

part of its review, AIMCO is providing the attached information

on Lead-Based Paint and its effects on human health and the

environment. If you have any gquestions regarding lead hazards,

please call your local health department or 1-800-424-LEAD.
No later than sixty (60) days after the date AIMCO signs this Consent Agreement, or with
respect to Subject Properties currently owned by Casden and NAPICO no later than sixty
(60) days after the date AIMCO acquires Casden and NAPICO, AIMCO shdl provideto
each tenant living in the Subject Properties in the Currently Owned or Managed Property Lig,
except for any Subject Property in the Currently Owned or Managed Property List that has
been certified as Lead-Based Paint Free a statement regarding the knowledge about and
reports regarding the presence of Lead-Based Paint or Lead-Based Paint Hazards in the unit.
Within eighty (80) days after the date the AIMCO signs this Consent Agreement, or with
respect to Subject Properties currently owned by Casden and NAPICO no later than eighty
(80) days after the date AIMCO acquires Casden and NAPICO, AIMCO shdl provide
written notice to EPA and HUD that it has complied with the requirements of Paragraphs 47
and 48 of this Consent Agreement. AIMCO shall submit the written notice pursuant to
Paragraph 92 of this Consent Agreement.
F. Quialification Of Lead Inspectorsand Lead Hazard Control Workers
AIMCO shal ensure that al work required by this Consent Agreement is executed by
individuas authorized to perform such work in accordance with the state and federa laws

applicable in the jurisdiction where the work is being performed. Clearance examinations shal
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52.

be performed by persons or entities independent of those performing hazard reduction or
maintenance activities, unless the designated party uses qudified in-house employees to conduct
clearance. The samein house employee shal not conduct both a hazard reduction or
maintenance activity and clearance examination.

G. Work to be Performed On Group 1

AIMCO shdl perform lead-based paint inspections on al Subject Propertiesin Group 1.
AIMCO shal commence the lead-based paint inspections of al Subject Propertiesin Group 1,
to the extent not aready accomplished by the date AIMCO sgns this Consent Agreement, no
later than seventy-five (75) days after the date AIMCO sign this Consent Agreement, or with
respect to Subject Propertiesin Group 1 currently owned by Casden and NAPICO no later
than seventy-five (75) days after the date AIMCO acquires Casden and NAPICO. AIMCO
shall complete the lead-based paint ingpections of the Subject Propertiesin Group 1 no later
than three-hundred thirty-five (335) days after the date AIMCO sgns this Consent Agreement,
or with respect to Subject Propertiesin Group 1 currently owned by Casden and NAPICO no
later than three-hundred thirty-five (335) days after the date AIMCO acquires Casden and
NAPICO.

AIMCO shdl provide EPA and HUD two (2) Synopsis Lead-Based Paint | nspection Reports
for the Subject Propertiesin Group 1. Thefirst Synopsis Lead-Based Paint Ingpection Report
shall include dl of the Subject Propertiesin Group 1 except for those Subject Propertiesin
Group 1 currently owned by Casden and NAPICO. AIMCO shdl provide EPA and HUD the
first Synopsis Lead-Based Paint Inspection Report for the Subject Propertiesin Group 1 no
later than three-hundred sixty-five (365) days after AIMCO sgns this Consent Agreement.

The second Synopsis Lead-Based Paint Ingpection Report shal include all the Subject
Propertiesin Group 1 currently owned by Casden and NAPICO. AIMCO shal provide EPA
and HUD the second Synopsis Lead-Based Paint Inspection Report for the Subject Properties
in Group 1 no later than three-hundred sixty-five (365) days after AIMCO acquires Casden
and NAPICO. AIMCO shal submit the Synopsis Lead-Based Paint Reports pursuant to
Paragraph 92 of this Consent Agreement.

19



53.

55.

56.

EPA and HUD reserve the right to request a copy of the certified ingpector’ s Lead-Based Paint
I nspection Report for any Subject Property in Group 1. AIMCO shall provide EPA and HUD
copies of the requested Lead-Based Paint Inspection Reports within fifteen (15) days of the
date such arequest isreceived. EPA and HUD shdl request and AIMCO shall submit
requested copies of the Lead-Based Paint Ingpection Reports pursuant to Paragraph 92 of this
Consent Agreement.

For each of the Subject Propertiesin Group 1 inspected prior to the date AIMCO sgnsthis
Consent Agreement that are certified lead-based paint free, AIMCO shdl provide EPA and
HUD a L ead-Based Paint Free Certification no later than forty-five (45) days following the
date AIMCO sgnsthis Consent Agreement. No later than three-hundred sixty-five (365) days
following the date AIMCO dgns this Consent Agreement, AIMCO shall submit Lead-Based
Paint Free Certifications for al Subject Propertiesin Group 1 ingpected following the deate
AIMCO sgnsthis Consent Agreement that are certified lead-based paint free. No later than
three-hundred sixty-five (365) days after AIMCO acquires Casden and NAPICO, AIMCO
shall submit Lead-Based Paint Free Certifications for al Subject Propertiesin Group 1
currently owned by Casden and NAPICO that are certified lead-based paint free. AIMCO
shal submit the certifications pursuant to Paragraph 92 of this Consent Agreement.

AIMCO shal perform arisk assessment to determine if Lead-Based Paint Hazards exist in
each of the Subject Propertiesin Group 1 that are not certified Lead-Based Paint Free. The
risk assessments shall be performed pursuant to the HUD Guidelines, Chapter 5, except that
the sampling protocol set forth in the HUD Guidelines, Chapter 7, shal be followed.

AIMCO shal commence the risk assessments of Subject Propertiesin Group 1 no later than
seventy-five (75) days after the date AIMCO signs this Consent Agreement or with respect to
Subject Propertiesin Group 1 currently owned by Casden and NAPICO no later than seventy-
five (75) days after the date AIMCO acquires Casden and NAPICO. AIMCO sndl complete
the risk assessments of Subject Propertiesin Group 1 no later than three-hundred ninety (390)
days after AIMCO sgns this Consent Agreement, or with respect to Subject Propertiesin
Group 1 currently owned by Casden and NAPICO no later than three-hundred ninety (390)
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58.

59.

days after the date AIMCO acquires Casden and NAPICO.

AIMCO shdl provide EPA and HUD two Synopsis Risk Assessment Reports for the Subject
Propertiesin Group 1. Thefirst Synopsis Risk Assessment Report will include al Subject
Propertiesin Group 1 except those Subject Properties currently owned by Casden or
NAPICO. AIMCO shdl provide EPA and HUD the first Synopsis Risk Assessment Report
for the Subject Propertiesin Group 1 no later than four-hundred ten (410) days after AIMCO
sggnsthis Consent Agreement. The second Synopsis Risk Assessment Report shdl include dl
the Subject Propertiesin Group 1 currently owned by Casden and NAPICO. AIMCO shdl
provide EPA and HUD the second Synopsis Risk Assessment Report for the Subject
Properties in Group 1 no later than four-hundred ten (410) days after AIMCO acquires
Casden and NAPICO. AIMCO shdl submit the Synopsis Risk Assessment Reports pursuant
to Paragraph 92 of this Consent Agreement.

EPA and HUD reserve the right to request a copy of the Risk Assessment Report for any
Subject Property in Group 1. AIMCO shall provide EPA or HUD copies of the requested
Risk Assessment Reports within fifteen (15) days of the date such arequest isreceived. EPA
or HUD shdl request and AIMCO shall submit the requested copies of the Risk Assessment
Reports in accordance with Paragraph 92 of this Consent Agreement.

For each of the Subject Propertiesin Group 1 included in the list provided to EPA and HUD
pursuant to Paragraph 42 of this Consent Agreement, AIMCO shdl diminate, through
abatement, pursuant to Chapter 12 of the HUD Guiddlines, the Lead-Based Paint Hazards
identified by the risk assessments. Except as provided within Subparagraph ¢, AIMCO shdll
perform the abatement work within sixty (60) days of the date AIMCO receives the Risk
Assessment Report for the Subject Property unless the order to remediate or otherwise correct
alead-based paint condition requires amore redrictive time frame. At a minimum, the
abatement work shdl include measures to permanently diminate dl Lead-Based Paint Hazards
pursuant to the HUD Guidelines, Chapter 12, excepted as stated in Subparagraph d., and shall
include:

a Conducting daily and fina cleanupsthat congst of cleaning procedures in accordance
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d.

with Chapter 14 of the HUD Guiddines;

Clearance examinations in accordance with Chapter 15 of the HUD Guiddines. The
appropriate clearance sandards shal be the more restrictive of those set by the
jurisdiction where the property islocated or by the EPA TSCA section 403 regulations
(Lead: Identification of Dangerous Levels of Lead, 66 Fed. Reg. 1205-1240 (Jan. 5,
2001)(to be codified at 40 C.F.R. Part 745);

Covering any bare soil on the grounds of each Subject Property with a vegetative
ground covering, mulch or other gppropriate covering pursuant to Chapter 11 of the
HUD Guidelines, within sx (6) months from the date AIMCO receives the Risk
Assessment Report; and

Resident protection measures in accordance with Chapter 8 of the HUD Guidelines.

For each of the Subject Propertiesin Group 1 that are not included in the list provided to EPA

and HUD pursuant to Paragraph 42 of this Consent Agreement, AIMCO shdl conduct lead-
based paint hazard reduction on dl Lead-Based Paint Hazards. At a minimum, performance of

the work under this Paragraph shdl include lead-based paint hazard reduction measures, and
shdl indlude:

a

Conducting daily and find cleanupsthat congst of cleaning procedures in accordance
with Chapter 14 of the HUD Guiddines;

Clearance examinations in accordance with Chapter 15 of the HUD Guiddines. The
appropriate clearance standards shall be the more restrictive of those set by the
jurisdiction where the property is located or by the EPA TSCA section 403 regulations
(Lead: Identification of Dangerous Levels of Lead, 66 Fed. Reg. 1205-1240 (Jan. 5,
2001)(to be codified at 40 C.F.R. Part 745);

Covering any bare soil on the grounds of each Subject Property with a vegetative
ground covering, mulch or other gppropriate covering pursuant to Chapter 11 of the
HUD Guiddines, within sx (6) months from the date AIMCO receives the Risk
Assessment Report; and

Resident protection measures in accordance with Chapter 8 of the HUD Guiddines.
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62.

The lead-based paint hazard reduction activities required by Paragraph 60 of this Consent

Agreement must be conducted in the timeframes specified below:

a Bare s0il on the grounds of each Subject Property shall be covered within six (6)
months from the date AIMCO receives the Risk Assessment Report for the Subject
Property;

b. Completion of the lead-based paint hazard reduction work in al common aress of the
Subject Properties within sixty (60) days of the date AIMCO receives the Risk
Assessment Report for the Subject Property;

C. Regardiess of unit turnover, the work set forth in Paragraph 60 shal be completed for
units in the Subject Properties in which a child under the age of S years or a pregnant
woman, or a child under the age of Six yearsisawho is expected to reside in the unit,
as defined by 24 C.F.R. 835.110, within sixty (60) days of the date AIMCO receives
the Risk Assessment Report for the Subject Property;

d. For units where there is a tenant turnover following the performance of arisk
assessment, AIMCO shal complete the work set forth in Paragraph 60 before a
new tenant occupies the unit; and

e Regardiess of the tenant turnover, AIMCO shdl complete the work set forth in
Paragraph 60 within two (2) years of the date AIMCO signs this Consent Agreement,
or, with respect to Subject Propertiesin Group 1 currently owned by Casden and
NAPICO, within two (2) years of the date AIMCO acquires Casden and NAPICO.

H. Work To Be Performed on Group 2

No later than thirty (30) days after AIMCO signs this Consent Agreement, or with respect to
Subject Properties currently owned by Casden and NAPICO no later than thirty (30) days
after the date AIMCO acquires Casden and NAPICO, AIMCO shdl provide EPA and HUD
alig of dl the Subject Propertiesto beincluded in Group 2. Theligts shdl: (i) include the
Subject Property name; (ii) include the address of the Subject Property; and (iii) state whether
AIMCO isthe owner of the Subject Property. AIMCO shdl provide the lists pursuant to
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65.

66.

67.

68.

Paragraph 92 of this Consent Agreement.

The lead-based paint ingpections and the risk assessments for the Subject Properties in Group
2 shdl be performed in accordance with the timeframes established by HUD.

AIMCO shdl provide EPA and HUD a Synopsis Lead-Based Paint Inspection Report for the
Subject Propertiesin Group 2. The Synopsis Lead-Based Paint Inspection Report shdl
include dl of the Subject Propertiesin Group 2. AIMCO shdl provide EPA and HUD the
Synopsis Lead-Based Paint Ingpection Report no later than thirty (30) days after AIMCO
receives the Lead-Based Paint Ingpection Report for the last Subject Property in Group 2
inspected by HUD. AIMCO shdl submit the Synopsis Lead-Based Paint Inspection Report
pursuant to Paragraph 92 of this Consent Agreement.

EPA and HUD reserve the right to request a copy of the certified Inspector’s Lead-Based
Paint Inspection Report for any of the Subject Propertiesin Group 2. AIMCO shall provide
EPA or HUD copies of the requested Lead-Based Paint Inspection Reports within fifteen (15)
days of the date such arequest isreceived. EPA or HUD shall request and AIMCO shdll
submit requested copies of the Lead-Based Paint Inspection Reports pursuant to Paragraph 92
of this Consent Agreemen.

No later than thirty (30) days following the date after AIMCO receives the Lead-Based Paint
Inspection Report for the last Subject Property in Group 2 ingpected by HUD, AIMCO shdl
provide EPA and HUD Lead-Based Paint Free Certifications for each Subject Property in
Group 2 that is certified Lead-Based Paint Free. AIMCO shdl submit such reports pursuant to
Paragraph 92 of this Consent Agreement.

No later than thirty (30) days after AIMCO receives the Risk Assessment Report for the last
Subject Property in Group 2 ingpected by HUD, AIMCO shadl provide EPA and HUD a
Synopsis Risk Assessment Report for the Subject Propertiesin Group 2. The Synopsis Risk
Assessment Report shdl include dl of the Subject Propertiesin Group 2. AIMCO shdl submit
the Synopsis Risk Assessment Report in accordance with Paragraph 92 of this Consent
Agreement.

EPA and HUD reserve the right to request a copy of the Risk Assessment Report for any
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70.

Subject Property in Group 2. AIMCO shdl provide EPA or HUD copies of the requested
Risk Assessment Reports within fifteen (15) days of the date such arequest isreceived. EPA
or HUD shdl request and AIMCO shdl submit the requested Risk Assessment Reportsin
accordance with Paragraph 92 of this Consent Agreement.

For each Subject Property in Group 2 included in the list provided to EPA and HUD pursuant

to Paragraph 42 of this Consent Agreement, AIMCO shall iminate, through abatement,

pursuant to Chapter 12 of the HUD Guidelines, the Lead-Based Paint Hazards identified by the
risk assessments. Except as provided in Subparagraph ¢, AIMCO shdl perform the abatement
work within sixty (60) days of the date AIMCO receives the Risk Assessment Report for the

Subject Property unless the order to remediate or otherwise correct alead-based paint

condition requires a more redrictive time frame. At a minimum, the abatement work shall

include measures to permanently diminate dl Lead-Based Paint Hazards pursuant to the HUD

Guidelines, Chapter 12, excepted as sated in Subparagraph d, and shdl include:

a Conducting daily and fina cleanupsthat consst of cleaning procedures in accordance
with Chapter 14 of the HUD Guiddines.

b. Clearance examinations in accordance with Chapter 15 of the HUD Guiddines. The
appropriate clearance standards shal be the more restrictive of those set by the
jurisdiction where the property islocated or by the EPA TSCA section 403 regulations
(Lead: Identification of Dangerous Levels of Lead, 66 Fed. Reg. 1205-1240 (Jan. 5,
2001)(to be codified at 40 C.F.R. Part 745);;

C. Covering any bare soil on the grounds of each Subject Property with a vegetative
ground covering, mulch or other gppropriate covering pursuant to Chapter 11 of the
HUD Guiddines, within sx (6) months from the date AIMCO receives the Risk
Assessment Report for that Subject Property; and

d. Resdent protection measures in accordance with Chapter 8 of the HUD Guiddlines.

For each of the Subject Propertiesin Group 2 that are not included in the list provided to EPA

and HUD pursuant to Paragraph 42 of this Consent Agreement, AIMCO shal conduct lead-

based paint hazard reduction on al Lead-Based Paint Hazards. At aminimum, performance of
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the work under this Paragraph shdl include |lead-based paint hazard reduction measures and
shdl indude:

a

Conducting daily and fina cleanupsthat consst of cleaning procedures in accordance
with Chapter 14 of the HUD Guiddines;

b. Clearance examinationsin accordance with Chapter 15 of the HUD Guidelines. The
appropriate clearance sandards shall be the more restrictive of those set by the
jurisdiction where the property islocated or by the EPA TSCA section 403 regulations
(Lead: Identification of Dangerous Levels of Lead, 66 Fed. Reg. 1205-1240 (Jan. 5,
2001)(to be codified at 40 C.F.R. Part 745);

C. Covering any bare soil on the grounds of each Subject Property with a vegetative
ground covering, mulch or other gppropriate covering pursuant to Chapter 11 of the
HUD Guiddines, within six (6) months from the date AIMCO receives the Risk
Assessment Report for that Subject Property; and

d. Resident protection measures in accordance with Chapter 8 of the HUD Guiddlines.

The lead-based paint hazard reduction activities require by Paragraph 70 must be conducted in

the timeframes specified below:

a Bare soil on the grounds of each Subject Property shdl be covered within six (6)

months from the date AIMCO received the Risk Assessment Report for the Subject
Property;

Completion of lead-based paint reduction work in al common areas of the Subject
Properties within sixty (60) days of the AIMCO received the Risk Assessment Report
for the Subject Property;

Regardless of unit turnover, the work set forth in Paragraph 70 shal be completed for
units in the Subject Properties in which a child under the age of Sx years or a pregnant
woman, or a child under the age of Sx yearswho is expected to resde in the unit as
defined in 24 C.F.R. 835.110 within sixty (60) days of the date AIMCO receives the
Risk Assessment Report for the Subject Property;

For units where there is a tenant turnover following the performance of arisk
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73.

74.

75.

assessment, AIMCO shall complete the work set forth in Paragraph 70 before a new
tenant occupies the unit;

e. Regardiess of the tenant turnover, AIMCO shdl complete the work set forth in
Paragraph 70 for al Subject Propertiesin Group 2 within one (1) year from the date
the AIMCO receives the Risk Assessment Report for the last Subject Property in
Group 2 assessed by HUD.

l. General Requirementsfor Work to be Performed Under Sections G and H

AIMCO shdll provide copiesto HUD of thefirst ten (10) lead-based paint hazard abatement

and hazard reduction plans prepared by each of the companies retained by AIMCO to perform

lead-based paint hazard reduction. AIMCO shall provide the lead-based paint hazard
reduction plansto HUD no later than ten (10) days after such plans are accepted by AIMCO.

Each plan shdl be prepared to ensure that lead-based paint hazard reduction activities are

conducted in accordance with Chapter 11 of the HUD Guidelines or Chapter 12 of the HUD

Guiddlines as gppropriate.

Following the completion of the lead-based paint hazard abatement and hazard reduction work

described in the Sections G and H of this Consent Agreement, AIMCO shdl perform ongoing

maintenance and |lead-safe work practices, conducted in accordance with Chapters 6 and 17 of
the HUD Guiddines for al Subject Propertiesthat are not certified Lead-Based Paint Free.

AIMCO has the sole respongbility for obtaining, at its own cost and expense, dl locd and sate

permits, licenses, or other forms of gpprova or authorization necessary to conduct the lead-

based paint hazard reduction prior to the commencement of the lead-based paint hazard
reduction.

Nether EPA, HUD nor their agents shdl be liable for any injuries or damages to persons or

property resulting from acts or omissions of AIMCO or any person in carrying out the lead-

based paint hazard reduction work. EPA and HUD shdl not be identified as parties to any
contract entered into by AIMCO in carrying out the lead-based paint hazard reduction work.

EPA and/or HUD shdl not be held ligble for any failure to act pursuant to any provision of this

Consent Agreement.  In the event that liability might be placed upon EPA and/or HUD,
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AIMCO agrees to indemnify and hold harmless EPA and/or HUD from any and dl causes of

action dueto any act or omission of AIMCO or any agent of AIMCO’sin carrying out the

lead-based paint hazard reduction work required by this Consent Agreement

J.

a

Training for The Respondent’s Property Manager s and Employees

AIMCO shdl develop and providetraining to al of its property managers and
employees performing maintenance, renovation, and other ongoing maintenance
activities, usng exigting training programs such as The Lead-Based Paint Maintenance
Training Program, *“Work Smart, Work Wet, and Work Clean to Work Lead Safe,”
prepared by the Nationd Environmental Training Association for EPA and HUD; “The
Remodeer’s and Renovator’ s Lead-Based Paint Training Program,”’ prepared by
HUD and the National Association of the Remodeling Industry; or another course
approved by HUD for this purpose. All property managers and employees performing
maintenance, renovation, and other ongoing maintenance activities shal be trained no
later than two-hundred sixty (260) days after the date AIMCO signs this Consent
Agreement. Thetraining shall subsequently be provided to AIMCO's property
managers and employees performing maintenance, renovation, and other ongoing
maintenance activities at the time of hire and thereefter on ayearly basis.

AIMCO shdl dso develop and provide training to al its property managers and leasing
agents regarding the requirements of Section 1018. Thistraining shal dso include a
generd discussion of the hazards presented by Lead-Based Paint, the importance of the
Section 1018 requirements, and the consequences of failing to follow through on dl the
requirements of Section 1018. All property managers and leasing agents shdl be
trained no later than two-hundred sixty (260) days after the date AIMCO sgnsthis
Consent Agreement. The training shall subsequently be provided to AIMCO'’s
property managers and leasing agents & the time of hire and thereafter on ayearly
basis.
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K. Annual Reports

For dl work performed under this Consent Agreement following the date AIMCO sgnsthis
Consent Agreement, AIMCO shd| submit awritten annua report to EPA and HUD within
forty-five (45) days after the one (1) year anniversary of the date AIMCO sgns this Consent
Agreement and annudly within forty-five (45) days after the anniversary of the date AIMCO
sgnsthis Consent Agreement until al Lead-Based Paint Hazards have been reduced, through
abatement or interim controls, from al Subject Properties. Each annud report shdl cover a
one-year period starting on the anniversary of the date AIMCO sgns this Consent Agreement.
The annud report shdl include, & a minimum, the following information and documentation for
each Subject Property: (i) a description of the units ingpected in accordance with Paragraphs
51 and 63 during that reporting period; (i) adescription of the units where arisk assessment
was performed in accordance with Paragraphs 57 and 67; (iii) a description of the units where
Lead-Based Paint Hazards were abated in accordance with Paragraphs 59 and 69; (iv) a
description of the units where Lead-Based Paint Hazards were reduced in accordance with
Paragraphs 60 and 70; (v) adescription of the ingpections, risk assessments and |ead-based
paint hazard reduction activities to be accomplished in accordance with Paragraphs 51, 57, 59,
60, 63, 67, 69, and 70 that are scheduled for the following reporting period; (vi) dust clearance
reports for each Subject Property which was abated or where Lead-Based Paint Hazards were
reduced during that reporting period; and (vii) itemized cogts for dl work performed asa
requirement of this Consent Agreement.

M.  Stipulated Penalties

If AIMCO fallsto pay the civil pendty of one-hundred twenty-nine thousand five-hundred
eighty dollars ($129,580) within thirty (30) calendar days of the date the find order is executed
by the EAB, AIMCO shdll pay a stipulated pendty of one-thousand dollars ($1,000) per
caendar day.

If AIMCO does not demonstrate to EPA and HUD that it acquired Casden and NAPICO
pursuant to Paragraph 43 of this Consent Agreement within one (1) year from the date
AIMCO sgns this Consent Agreement, AIMCO shdll pay a stipulated pendty of twenty-
thousand dollars ($20,000).
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83.

If AIMCO fails to submit reports required under this Consent Agreement to EPA and HUD in

accordance with the deadlines set forth in the Consent Agreement, AIMCO shdll pay a

dtipulated pendlty of five-hundred dollars ($500) per calendar day for each day each report is

late. The reports which AIMCO is required to submit under this Consent Agreement include:

a) the list of Subject Properties where AIMCO has received any order to remediate a
lead-based paint condition issued by the loca health department or other state or local
government unit in response to a confirmed instance of alead poisoned child and the
written certification, as required by Paragraph 42;

b) the notice that AIMCO acquired Casden and NAPICO or notice that the acquisition of
Casden and NAPICO was canceled, as required by Paragraph 43;

) certification that AIMCO provided notice under Section 1018 as required by
Paragraph 49;

d) the lists of Subject Properties to be included in Group 2 as required by Paragraph 62;

e) the Synopsis Lead-Based Paint Inspection Reports for Groups 1 and 2 as required by
Paragraphs 52 and 64,

f) the Lead-Based Paint Free Certifications for each Subject Property that was certified
as Lead-Based Paint Free, as required by Paragraphs 54 and 66;

0 the Synopsis Risk Assessment Reports for Groups 1 and 2 as required by Paragraphs
59 and 67;

h) the lead-based paint hazard abatement and hazard reduction plans as required by
Paragraphs 72; and

i) the annual reports as required by Paragraph 77.

If AIMCO failsto perform lead-based paint ingpections as st forth in Paragraph 50 within the

time period AIMCO agrees to pay a stipulated pendlty of one-thousand ($1,000) per Subject

Property.

If AIMCO failsto perform risk assessments as st forth in Paragraphs 55 in the time periods

st forth in Paragraphs 56, AIMCO agreesto pay a stipulated pendty of one-thousand

(%$1,000) per Subject Property.

If AIMCO failsto perform any of the work required in Paragraphs 59, 60, 69, and 70, within
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the time lines etablished and in the manner required by Paragraphs 59, 61, 69, and 71

AIMCO shall be required to:

a pay one-thousand five-hundred dollars ($1,500) per month per unit (or per building if
the work requirement pertains to Lead-Based Paint Hazards in the common area or
|ead-contaminated soil) where the work is not fully completed; and

b. abate the Lead-Based Paint in each unit (or building, if the work requirement pertainsto
common aress or lead-contaminated soil) that the work is not fully completed. The
abatement work shal be perform pursuant to the steps required in Paragraph 59.

If AIMCO fails to provide Complainant with Lead-Based Ingpection Reports or Risk

Assessment Reports requested under Paragraphs 53, 59, 65, and 68 within the specified

timeframes, AIMCO agrees to pay five-hundred ($500) per calendar day for each day a

requested report is late.

Stipulated pendties shall accrue regardless of whether the Complainant has notified AIMCO of

violation of this Consent Agreement or made a demand for payment, but need only be paid

upon demand. All pendties shal begin to accrue on the firgt date of noncompliance and shdll
continue to accrue through the date of compliance. Nothing herein shall prevent the United

States from seeking other relief that may be avalable for non-compliance.  Each independent

basis for a gipulated pendty accrues separately.

At Complainant’s sole discretion, Complainant will excuse or mitigete a stipulated pendty if

Complainant determines that the failure to comply with the triggering event occurred despite the

exercise of good faith and due diligence by AIMCO. If sipulated pendties are due,

Complainant will dispatch to AIMCO a demand letter via certified mail, return receipt

requested, which specifies the stipulated pendty due and owed by AIMCO. Within fourteen

(14) cdendar daysfollowing AIMCO's receipt of such demand letter, AIMCO shdl pay the

dipulated pendty in the manner specified in the Paragraphs 39 and 40 of this Consent

Agreement.

Fallure to remit the civil pendty or any stipulated pendty provided herein may result in this

matter being forwarded to the United States Department of Justice for collection of the amount

due, plus stipulated pendties and interest at the statutory judgment rate provided for in 31
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88.

89.

90.

91.

92.

U.S.C. 83717, asin effect on the date the EAB sgnsthe Find Order.

\4
OTHER MATTERS

This Consent Agreement and the proposed Final Order are not intended to, nor shall be
congtrued to, operate in any way to resolve any crimind liability of AIMCO.

This Consent Agreement and the proposed Final Order do not resolve ligbility for any
individua owner of a property or properties where AIMCO manages or managed that property
on afeebass.

Nothing in this Consent Agreement shall relieve AIMCO of the duty to comply with dl
gpplicable provisons of TSCA, Section 1018, and with other federa, state, and local laws and
regulations.

This Consent Agreement shdl bind the Partiesin full effect upon the date the Find Order is
sgned by the EAB.

AIMCO shall forward a copy of al reports required under this Consent Agreement, to the
following persons.

Brian T. Dyer

Toxics and Pesticides Enforcement Division (2245A)
U.S. Environmentd Protection Agency

1200 Pennsylvania Ave, N.W.

Washington, D.C. 20460-0001

Matthew Ammon

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Devel opment
Office of Healthy Homes and Lead Hazard Control
451 7" Street, SW

Room P-3206

Washington, D.C. 20410

Complainant shdl forward al notices or other communications under this Consent Agreement
to the following person:

Joel F. Bonder
Executive Vice Presdent
Legd and Regulatory Affars
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93.

94.

95.
96.

97.

98.

AIMCO
2000 S. Colorado Blvd, Tower 2, Suite 2-1000
Denver, Colorado 80222

Each party may change the contact or the address by sending written notice to al parties a the
addresses listed above.

AIMCO's obligations under this Consent Agreement shdl terminate when it has performed dl
of the terms of the Consent Agreement. Termination of this Consent Agreement shall not
relieve AIMCO from complying with any ongoing operations and maintenance activities in the
Subject Properties in accordance with Chapters 6 and 17 of the HUD Guiddlines, as required
in Paragraph 89.

When signed by the EAB, the proposed Find Order shall have the same force and effect as
defined in 40 C.F.R. §22.03.

The Parties agree to bear their own costs and attorney feesin this matter.

AIMCO shdl not deduct the penalty paid under this Consent Agreement from its federa, Sate,
or local income taxes.

This Consent Agreement congtitutes the final, complete and exclusive agreement and
undergtlanding among the Parties with respect to the settlement embodied herein. The Parties
acknowledge that there are no representations, agreements or understanding relating to the
settlement other than those expresdy contained in this Consent Agreement.

AIMCO shdl preserve, during the pendency of this Consent Agreement and for a minimum of
a tweve months after AIMCO' s full satisfaction of the obligations of the Consent Agreement,
al documents and records in its custody, control or possession and in the custody, control or
possession of its employees, agents, assigns, contractors, subcontractors or consultants, which
in any manner relae to this Consent Agreement or to the performance of work under this
Consent Agreement. At the end of this twelve month period and at least thirty (30) cdendar
days before any document or record is destroyed, AIMCO shdll notify and make available to
Complainant pursuant to Paragraph 92, such documents and records, or shal provide the
originds or accurate, true and complete copies of such documents and records to Complainant.

AIMCO shdl not destroy any document or record to which Complainant has requested access
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for inspection or copying until Complainant has obtained such access or copies or withdrawn its
request for such access or copies. Notwithstanding the requirements of this Paragraph,
AIMCO must also comply with the record retention requirements at 40 C.F.R. § 745.113(c)
and 24 C.F.R §35.92(c) or any other requirement, as appropriate.

WE AGREE TO THIS:

FOR COMPLAINANTS: ' 2

Anmn M. Pontnus, Acting Director David E. Jacobs, Dlrector

Toxics and Pesticides Enforcement Division Office of Health Homes
“Office of Regulatory Enforcement and Lead Hazard Control

Department of Housmg and Urban

Development
Date;, / Z,/ / 7/ 0/ Date: JAN -2 m

FOR RESPONDENT:

&&QQM

Joel F. Bonder
Executive Vice President
Legal and Regulatory Affairs

Date: 2 <. (& / 200\
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UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY
BEFORE THE ENVIRONMENTAL APPEALS BOARD

WASHINGTON, D.C.
)
In the Matter of: )
)
Apartment Investment and ) Docket No. TSCA HQ-2002-0003
Management Company, )
)
Respondent. )
)

FINAL QRDER
Pursuant to Secrion 16 of TSCA, 15 U.S.C. § 2615, ir is hereby ORDERED THAT:

1. Respondent shall comply with all of the terms of the Consent Agreement, incorporated
herein by reference;

2. Respondent is assessed a civil penalty in the sum of $129,580 and

3. Respondent shall, within thirty (30) calendar days of the cxccution of the Final Order,
dispatch a cashicr's or certified check payable 1o the order of the "Treasurer of the
United States of America" in the amount of $129,580. The check shall indicate that it is
for “Docket No. TSCA HQ-2002-0003" and shall be mailed to:

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Headquarters Hearing Clerk

P.O. Lockbox 360277

Pitisburgh, PA 15251-6277

4, This order shall be in effect forthwith.

IT IS SO ORDERED,
Environmental Appeals Board

Date: g]zvlugr? /g oo By: ﬁﬂ:& @ ‘—42244;

Environmental Appeals Judge
U.S. Environmental Protcction Agency



AIMCO

Apartment investment and Management Company

APPENDIX 1

1620 EYE STREET NW « SUITE 220 » WASHINGTON, DC 20006 « TELEPHONE 202-776-

1162 » FACSIMILE 202-776-1169
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AIMCO

Apartment investment and Management Company

APPENDIX 2

GROUP 1

1620 EYE STREET NW « SUITE 220 « WASHINGTON, DC 20006 « TELEPHONE 202-776-1162 + FACSIMILE 202-776-1169
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AIMCO

Apartment Investment and Management Company

APPENDIX 2

GROUP 2

1620 EYE STREET NW ¢ SUITE 220 « WASHINGTON, DC 20006 » TELEPHONE 202-776-1162 » FACSIMILE 202-776-1169
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AIMCO

Apartment Investment and Management Company

APPENDIX 2

GROUP 3

1620 EYE STREET NW ¢ SUITE 220 ¢ WASHINGTON, DC 20006 » TELEPHONE 202-776-1162 « FACSIMILE 202-776-1169




APPENDIX 2 - GROUP 3

TO BE ADDED. APPROXIMATELY 155 CASDEN/NAPICO PROPERTIES.
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APPENDIX 3

OWNED PROPERTIES SOLD/LOST

1620 EYE STREET NW ¢ SUITE 220 « WASHINGTON, DC 20006 « TELEPHONE 202-776-1162 » FACSIMILE 202-776-1169
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AIMCO
Status Report of Aimco Prope

Property Name Partnership Name Location No. Units Ago Closing Diste
2001 Sales
1 |Cheyenne Woods Cheyenne Woods LLC Las Vegas, NV 160 137,792 1988 1/6/01
2 _|Cambridge Manor Fairfisld One-Oxford L.P. Fairfield, CT 160 62,920 1989 1/8/01
3 [Cambridge Heights Cambridge Heights Apts Ltd Nalchez, MS 94 83,112 1979 1/18/01
4 _|Elkhorn Tower United Housing Partners Weich Ltd Welsh, WV 100 58,700 1982 1/18/01
5 [Magnolia Trace Consolidated Capital Equity Partners, LP Balon Rouge, LA 246 242,236 1973 1/19/01
6 |Forest Park Forest Apartments Assoc Detroit, M! 160 165,924 1983 1/19/01
7 _|Storey Manor Storey Manor Assoc Ltd Ptsp Cottage Hill, IL 50 44,636 1983 1/25/01
8 |Federal Square Federal Square Village Ltd Ptsp Englewood, CO 72 63,065 1975 1/29/01
9 iWindsor Windsor Apts Wilmington, DE 169 148,800 1973 1/31/01
10 |Curry Junction Southwest Affordable Housing Fund Ltd Ptsp Abilene, TX 228 182,064 1984 2/28/01
11 _|Festival Field Fiald Assoc Newport, RI 204 148,520 1992 3/8/01
12 |Rivercrest VMS Investors First Stage Equity Sacremento, CA 328 301,136 1976 3/16/01
13 |Cobble Creek Cobble Creek Assoc., LLC Glendale, AZ 142 95,140 1985 3/29/01
14 (Willow Creek Emory Grove Limited Ptsp. Gaithersburg, MD 137 126,155 1982 4/12/01
15 (Pendleton Riverside Apts Pendleton Riverside Apts Oregon Ltd. Pendleton, OR 40 32,564 1977 4/20/01
16 |Haines Haines Assoc Ltd Ptsp Seattle, WA 30 11,895 1982 4/30/01
17 |Timberlake 12/21/00 Timberiake Apts Ltd Ptsp Arlington, TX 224 207,778 1971 4/30/01
18 |Westminster Courts Westminister Ltd Ptsp Suitland, MD 115 51,084 1984 4/30/01
19 |Briarwood 4/06/01 AP XIl ASSOCIATES, L.P. Cedar Rapids, IA 73 72,860 1975 5/14/01
20 |Gateway Gardens 4/06/01 AP Xl ASSOCIATES, L.P. Cedar Rapids, IA 328 258,240 1969 5/14/01
21 _|Washington Manor 10/10/00 Washington Manor Ltd Ptsp Beaumont, TX 150 136,594 1972 5/17/01
22 |Aristocrat 10/10/00 Houston Aristocrat Apts Ltd Ptsp Houston, TX 272 251,523 1995 5/30/01
23 |EAGLE ROCK VILLAGE 4/03/01 Frankiin Eagle Rock A Wichita,KS 352 297,376 1985 6/11/01
24 |Autumn Chase Southwest Associates, LP Kingsport, TN 369 339,528 1974 6/29/01
25 {Parker Square 2/26/01 Southward Ltd Ptsp Houston, TX 175 148,235 1972 6/29/01
26 |Ashley Woods 4/16/01 Davidson Diversified Real Estate I, LP Cincinnati, OH 352 314,880 1972 7/12/01
27 |Chapel Hill 5/7/01 Chapel Hill L. P. Indianapolis, IN 148 183,600 1968 7/13/01
28 [Chapelwood 5/7/01 Chapel Hill L. P. Indianapolis, IN 140 220,300 1969 7/13/01
29 [College Heights 5/25/01 College Heights Ltd Ptsp Biloxi, MS 128 92,984 1971 7/16/01
30 |Hickory Ridge 5/14/01 Property VIi, LP Memphis, TN 378 358,392 1975 7/16/01
31_|Knolicrest 2/16/01 Knolicrest Apts Ltd Ptsp Nashville, TN 200 200,000 1973 7/30/01
32 |Enfield 5/7/01 Winthrop Texas Investors, LP Dallas, TX 286 208,383 1984 7/31/01
33 [Stoney Creek §/7/01 Winthrop Texas Investors, LP Dallas, TX 364 276,296 1983 7/31/01
34_|Rosemont Xing 4/11/01 Houston Pines San Antonio, TX 217 177,840 1974 7/31/01
35 |Lincoln Park 3/30/01 Lincoln Park Assoc Denver, CO 57 44,573 1982 7/31/01
36_|Woodland Crossing | 4/19/01 Highridge Assoc., L. P. Huntsville, AL 132 130,640 1979 7/31/01
37 {Woodland Xing Il 4/18/01 Highridge Assoc., L. P. Huntsville, AL 48 46,880 1982 7/31/01
38 |Duke Manor 9/27/00 Duke Manor Associates Lancaster, PA 80 54,140 1967 7/31/01
39 [Lake Forest 7/18/01 Lake Forest Apts Erie, PA 204 158,728 1972 7/31/01
40 {Panorama Terrace 6/13/01 Angeles Partners IX Birmingham, AL 227 275,070 1975 8/1/01
41 _|Rocky Ridge 6/13/01 National Propery Investors 6 Birmingham, AL 116 107,790 1973 8/1/01
42 |Town & Country 5/15/00 Elkhart Town & Country LP Elkhart, IN 72 115,000 1983 8/3/01
43 1Penn Hall 1/31/01 Penn Hall Assoc Ltd Ptsp Seattle, WA 30 ??7? 1983 8/9/01
44 |Lauderdale Towers Southwest Associates, LP Ft, Lauderdale, Fi. 123 88,524 1962 8/16/01
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AIMCO
Status Report of Aimco Prope

Property Namo Partnership I\!;vme Location No. Units Closing Date
ngeles Realty Corp. /| / Angeles Income
45 |Pigeon Forge Factory Properties, Ltd. IV Pigeon Forge, TN comm 198,311 8/23/01
46 |Canyon Oaks 5/4/01 S Affd Housing Fund Ltd Ptsp Austin, TX 562 402,658 1971 8/30/01
47 |Ashland Towne 4/30/01 South Associates, LP Richmond, VA 218 194,598 1974 8/31/01
48 [Meadows |l Apts 8/6/2001 Meadows i, LTD. Biloxi, MS 128 97,600 1978 9/7/01
49 {Meadows IV Apts 8/6/2001 Meadows Partners IV Biloxi, MS 129 98,175 1978 9/7/01
50 |Woodberry Forest 4/25/01 Southwest Associates, LP Virginia Beach, VA 92 74,152 1972 9/18/01
51 [Gates of West Bay 4/19/01 NHP Bayshore Gardens L.P. Norfolk, VA 202 188,879 1963 9/28/01
52 |Victoria Station 6/28/01 Franklin Victoria Assoc. | Victoria, TX 224 163,032 1997 9/28/01
53 |Auburn Chase Brandemere-REO, LP Newport News, VA 272 177,760 1972 10/1/01
84 |Heatherwood Southwest Associates, LP Newport News, VA 232 186,304 1974 10/17/01
55 |Windsor Vailey Il 3112/01 Meadowood | Preservation Corporation Edgewood, MD 283 253,620 1970 10/17/01
56 |PINE CREEK (TX) 4/11/01 Texas Affd Hsg Invest Fund | LP Houston, TX 300 205,004 1979 10/18/01
67 |Highland Pk 1 & || 4/26/01 Century XX Charlotte, NC comm 105,644 1986 10/23/01
58 {Highland Pk Il 4/26/01 Century XXIII Charlotte, NC comm 65,704 1986 10/23/01
59 |Tall Tree 8/31/01 Valdosta, GA 148 136,992 1972 10/29/01
60 |Monmouth 11/17/00 Monmouth Assoc Ltd Ptsp Seattle, WA 52 32,639 1982 11/1/01
61 |Lassen 1/24/00 Lassen Assoc San Francisco, CA 81 46,415 1983 11/20/01
62 |Indian Land 9/26/01 Kinard Limited Partnership Newberry, SC 52 44,768 1974 11/30/01
63 |Windsor Crossing Tct 2 Windsor Crossings Limited Partnership East Winsor, NJ Land 805,860 12/5/01
64 |Waters Towers Waters Towers Assoc Ltd Ptsp Baltimore, MD 204 136,270 1977 12/6/01
65 |Darbytown Manor 4/2/01 Darbytown Development Assoc LP Richmond, VA 140 108,220 1973 12/14/01
2000 Sales
1 |Fairview Homes Fairview Homes Assoc Newark, NJ 136 106,970 1979 1/31/00
2 |Lock Street Neighborhoods Of The Universities Lock St Apts C |Newark, NJ 50 34,160 1870 1/31/00
3 |Terrace View Central Village Assoc Ltd Ptsp Grand Prairie, TX 192 172,464 1969 2/11/00
4 |Arbor Crossing The Cr gs i Ltd Prtnrshp Lithonia, GA 240 246,160 1989 3/9/00
5 |Lake Crossing Lake Crossing Ltd Ptsp Austell, GA 300 302,648 1988 3/9/00
6 {Quailtree AIMCO/Quailtree, L.P. Phoenix, AZ 184 114,798 1978 3/9/00
7_|Tara Bridge Tara Bridge Ltd Ptsp Jonesboro, GA 220 193,000 1988 3/9/00
8 |Cranbrook Club NHP Cranbrook Club L.P. Lauderdale Lakes, FL 352 374,340 1974 3/28/00
9 |Congress | Congress Park Assoc Ltd Ptsp Washington, D.C. 163 0 0 3/31/00
10 [Coral Palm Plaza WA #N/A #N/A #NIA #N/A 1/18/00
11 _|Atlanta Crossing (Rtl) Montgomery, AL 0 169,168 0 3/15/00
12 [Table Mesa Boulder, CO 0 0 0 3/17/00
13 |Linpro Off. Bldg. Century XXl Reston, VA 0 75,191 1982 3/27/00
14 |Gulfgate Land Century XXiii Reston, VA 0 75,191 1982 3/31/00
15 |Corners, The Century Properties Fund XX Spartansburg, SC 176 119,416 1973 4/7/00
16 |Oak Tree Texas Affd Hsg Invest Fund | LP Stephanville, TX 200 146,800 1979 5/19/00
17 |Enclaves, The Century Properties Fund X0 Atlanta, GA 268 332,172 1979 5/26/00
18 |Carlin Manor Multi-Benefit Realty Fund Columbus, OH 278 277,480 1966 6/13/00
19 {Harbor Club Downs Century Properties F«;ndxx Palm Harbor, FL 272 244,800 1985 6/20/00
20 {Dolphins Landing AIMCO Properties, L.P. Corpus Christi, TX 218 199,723 1975 6/29/00
21 _jWakonda on Fleur AIPL 6 Des Moines, IA 0 36,400 0 5/4/00
22 |Metcalf 103 Century XX Overland Park, KS 0 62,808 1973 5/8/00
23 |Town & Country AIPL 6 Cedar Rapids, IA 0 103,849 [ 5/19/00
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Proprrty Nitme Partnership Name Location No. Units Aqo Closing Date
24 |61 North High 0 |Columbus,OH 0 85,727 0 6/2/00
25 [Regency Center Century XXill Lexington, KY 0 124,424 0 8/9/00
26 |Interrich Plaza Century XXii| Richardson, TX 0 52,869 0 6/30/00
27 |Mills, The A dor Vill, L.P. Houston, TX 708 613,680 1979 7/14/00
28 [Pines of NW Crossing Houston Pines Houston, TX 412 319,568 1973 7/14/00
29 |Prime Crest Ambassador Vill, L.P. Austin, TX 148 121,320 1973 7/14/00
30 |Royal Crest Ambassador Vi, L.P. Austin, TX 204 196,316 1973 7/14/00
31 |Shirewood Townhomes Concap Equities, Inc. Shreveport, LA 228 205,200 1948 7/14/00
32 {Countrywood Vlllage Shelter Properties IV Raleigh, NC 384 378,568 1972 8/1/00
33 [Owings Manor Waestbury investors Reistertown, MD 791 561,186 1965 8/4/00
34 {Aspen Ridge C: lidated Caphtal Properties V Waest Chicago, iL 253 203,082 1969 8/16/00
35 |Ridge Cariton Norco Assoc. / Ridge Carlton Associates Ltd Ptsp |Philadelphia, PA 164 120,414 1967 8/22/00
36 Westwobd Fountains Texas Affd Hsg Invest Fund Il LP Houston, TX 293 208,709 1978 8/24/00
37 |7400 Roosevelt 7400 Roosevelt investors Philadelphia, PA 196 178,730 1973 8/29/00
38 |EASTON TERRACE | Easton Terrace | Assoc Lid Ptsp Dallas, TX 256 206,360 1966 8/31/00
39 |EASTON TERRACE Il E: Terrace ll Assoc Ltd Ptsp Dallas, TX 26 31,784 1970 8/31/00
40 |Northlake Terrace North Lake Terrace Assoc Ltd Ptsp Dallas, TX 184 171,572 1965 8/31/00
41 {Northwest Terrace Northwest Terrace Assoc Lid Ptsp Dallas, TX 288 291,105 1967 8/31/00
42 |Riverwalk Riverwalk Associates LP Houston, TX 104 93,743 1985 8/31/00
43 |Sutton Place Cosolidated Capital V Corpus Christi, TX 201 176,046 1972 9/7/00
44 |Heritage Pointe Shelter Properties I, LP Rome, GA 149 139,365 1976 9/14/00
45 |Salem Arms Salem Arms of Augusta Augusta, GA 136 132,826 1971 9/14/00
46 |Casa Grapada Angeles income Properties, Ltd Harlingen, TX 108 92,118 1965 9/21/00
47 |Canyon, The Stonecreek Ltd Knoxville, TN 108 79,020 1974 9/28/00
43 |Hastings Grn 1 Lnd WN/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A 7/19/00
49 |Hastings Grn 2 Lnd WN/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A 7/19/00
50 {Windsor Crossing Tct 1 WN/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A 7/28/00
51 140th North AIMCO Properties Finance Parnership, L.P. Phoenix, AZ 556 373,264 1970 10/6/00
52 |Briarwood Aimco Briarwood, LLC Fayetteville, NC 274 212,380 1994 10/6/00
53 {Maple Hill Maple Hill Assoc Mount Pleasant, PA 72 65,316 1979 10/12/00
54 |Tyee Tyee Assoc Anchorage, AK 100 90,196 1972 10/13/00
55 |{Woodside Village Woodside Village Anchorage, AK 180 189,780 1971 10/13/00
56 |Greywood Glen Q Court Joint Venture Pascagoula, MS 136 126,408 1972 10/16/00
57 |Bennington Square Bennington Realty Partners LP/Pradium Houston, TX 313 270,534 1978 10/26/00
58 |Kemar Kemar Tt Assoc Frankfort, IN 80 63,400 1973 11/13/00
59 |Foxfire-Barcelona Sheiter VI Limited Partnership Durham, NC 354 318,480 1972 11/15/00
60 {Centre Stage Century XXl Norcross, GA 0 95,357 n/a 11/16/00
61 |Hazeltree AIMCO/Hazeltree, L.P. Phoenix, AZ 310 221,293 1960 11/20/00
62 |Hollywood Gardens Hollywood Gardens Hollywood, CA 62 32,954 1920 11/28/00
63 |Rivercrest, AZ AIMCO/Rivercrest, L.P. Tucson, AZ 210 131,780 1984 11/30/00
64 |New Lake Village Downing Apts 4 Henryetta, OK 60 45,764 1970 12/1/00
65 |Cross Bridge Texas Residential I s, LP Dalias, TX 160 110,280 1980 12/6/00
66 |Sunflower Winthrop Growth Investors, LP Dallas, TX 248 178,152 1978 12/6/00
67 |Scotch Lane Scotch Lane Assoc Philadelphia, PA 300 277,758 1972 12/13/00
68 |Creekside Bensalem Gardens Assoc Ltd |Bensalem, PA 288 213,024 0 12/14/00
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Status Report of Aimco Prope

Property Name Partnership Name Location No. Units Clasing Date
69 [Creekside Bensalem Gardens Assoc Ltd Ptsp Bensalem, PA 234 172,698 0 12/14/00
70 |Creekside Doral Gardens Associates Bensalem, PA 504 372,792 0 12/14/00
71 _|Greenery, The Cottonwood Apts Woodland, CA 95 70,895 1973 12/15/00
72 |Cobbie Creek Cobble Creek Assoc. L.P. Tucson, AZ 301 217,382 1971 12/19/00
73 |Basswood Manor (AFF?) Basswood Manor Ltd Ptsp Lewisville, TX 212 191,196 1974 12/21/00
74 |Richardson Highland VMS Investors First Stage Equity Marin City, CA 198 148,509 1978 12/27/00
75 |Trinity Hills Village Trinity Hills Village Apts Ltd Ptsp Nashville, TN 100 88,648 1973 12/27/00
76 |Fairmeadows Fairmeadows Ltd Duncanville, TX 200 169,408 1871 12/27/00
77 |Southridge Southridge Apts Ltd Ptsp Austin, TX 232 193,034 1970 12/27/00
78 |Stratford Place ConCap Stratford Associates, Ltd. Austin, TX 223 188,520 1964 12/28/00
79 |Wollaston Manor Woll Manor A Quincy, MA 164 59,481 1975 12/29/00
1999 Sales
1 _|Plantation Jacksonville, FL 282 375,900 1966 1/12/98
2 | Vista Hills El Paso, TX 264 203,860 0 3/1/99
3 |Garden Terrace Bowie, TX 20 19,000 1978 3/24/99
4 |Cooper Point Plaza Olympia, WA n/a 173,473 0 1/5/99
20365 Progress Dr. &12005 Alameda
5 (Dbr. Cleveland, OH na 127,927 0 1/7/98
6 |Gallery-Knoxville Knoxville, TN n/a 100,608 0 2/1/99
7 _|Restaurant Properties Florida n/a n/a 0 2/8/99
8 |Mesa Dunes Mesa, AZ n/a n/a 0 2/19/99
9 |Princeton Meadows GC Plainsboro, NJ n/a n/a 0 2/26/99
10 |Southgate Bedford Heights, OH 152 128,800 1968 4/20/99
11 |Waterman San Bernadino, CA 128 106,204 n/a 5/20/99
12 | Village Park Towers N. Miami, FL 871 657,278 1974 5/25/99
13 |Chelsea Lane Houston, TX 208 216,566 1972 6/1/99
14 |Keegans Mill Houston, TX 318 218,272 1977 6/1/99
15 |Fox Bay Tucson, AZ 232 148,400 1983 6/21/99
16 |Red Hill Plaza Tustin, CA n/a 36,993 1978 4/30/99
17 |Alpha Business Bloomington, MN n/a 172,768 1980 6/1/99
18 |Plymouth Service Plymouth, MN n/a 74.400 1978 6/2/99
19 |Westpoint Business Plymouth, MN n/a 160,993 1978 6/4/99
20 |University Center1 & Il Fridley, MN n/a 49,835 1985 6/3/99
21 |Eastgate Market Walla Walla, Wa n/a 144,548 1972 6/17/99
22 |University Center IV Spring Lake, MN n/a 55,950 1978 6/18/99
23 |South City Business Chula Vista, CA n/a 167,766 1976 6/18/99
24 |Twinbridge Tucson, AZ 104 55,120 1982 7/1/99
25 |The Consulate Washington, DC 269 224,010 1978 7/15/99
26 |Southpointe Bedford, OH 499 56,600 1971 8/6/99
27 jColony Cove Land Bradenton, FL 33.7 acre n/a n/a 9/22/99
28 |Gallery Huntsville ’ Huntsville, AL n/a 100,548 0 7/2/99
29 |Professional Plaza Sait Lake City